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Dear John,

FOLLOW-UP INTERCHANGE QUESTIONS

I refer to your letter dated 1 June 2001, and to our brief response dated 12 June 2001.

You have now received the Australian Bankers’ Association (“ABA”) submission “Credit
Card Networks in Australia: An Appropriate Regulatory Framework”.  Westpac was an
active participant in the formulation of that submission, and we consider that to a very
large extent it sets out our current thinking on the questions posed by your letter.

Our more specific responses follow.

Standard on Setting Interchange Fees

Westpac strongly supports the view expressed in Chapter 2 of the ABA submission that
the regulation of designated credit card schemes should take place via the establishment
of an access regime rather via the setting of standards.

In particular, Westpac shares the belief that this regulatory mechanism would allow the
Reserve Bank to define an “envelope”, including the imposition of maximum level of
recoverable costs, within which schemes would have some flexibility to determine their
own, competitive, interchange fee setting methodologies.

Of the established methodologies that have been the subject of scrutiny in the lead up to
and following designation, Westpac has determined a strong preference for the
‘avoidable cost’ methodology proposed by the ABA submission.  We believe that the
Attachment to the ABA submission sets out the appropriate starting point for recognising

U.2



- 2 -

the elements of cost that should be recovered from acquirers (and hence merchants) by
issuers.

Westpac considers a credit card is a substitute for deferred payment that may be offered
by merchants.  The simple concept is that retailers have ‘outsourced’ the operation of
their debtors ledger by accepting credit and charge cards.  They pay a merchant service
fee (incorporating interchange) in place of bearing the costs of funding a debtors ledger
and associated credit losses, fraud losses and administrative costs.  The extended credit
offered on credit cards is an added service not typically offered by the merchant (or
indeed charge cards or store cards).

Westpac would prefer not to make further comment specifically on interchange standards
until the Payments System Board resolves the question of whether they will be take the
form of standards imposed under section 18 of the Payment Systems (Regulation) Act
1998, or be embodied within an access regime under section 12 of the Act.

Westpac believes it is appropriate that issuers recover from acquirers some proportion of
the marketing costs of promoting credit card use as the use of credit confers a benefit on
merchants.  The attached article from The Australian Financial Review of Wednesday 4
July 2001 demonstrated the significance of these benefits to the US economy.  The
article also reported that issuers were writing-off debts an annualised rate of 6.7%.  It is
our understanding that these very high levels of credit loss are incorporated into the
MasterCard U.S. interchange fee pricing models, which may explain the relatively high
interchange rates that apply in that most competitive market.

On a specific issue, Westpac does not support a regime that differentiated interchange
fees based on merchant category.  Westpac’s experience in New Zealand with
supermarket rates suggest this will be a highly contentious issue due to the difficulty of
proving the true nature of the merchant’s business.  Westpac supports differentiation
based on the type of process involved; paper based, electronic face to face; or mail /
telephone order.

Setting interchange rates too low will lead to dominance of closed schemes at greater
cost to the community, as banks leave the card associations to issue Amex or Diners
Cards.  The market share of Amex and Diners in the corporate / purchasing card market
is evidence of this potential outcome.

Risks of Self-Acquisition to Issuers

Westpac supports the comments made by the Bankcard Association of Australia on this
issue in its document:  ‘Designation of Credit Card Payment Systems by Reserve Bank
of Australia: Bankcard Association of Australia’s Response to Questions Posed by RBA’.
These comments are elaborated upon in Chapter 5 of the ABA submission (section 5.5 –
‘Policies on Self Acquisition’).

The consumer protection provisions of the credit card scheme rules provide cardholders
up to six months in which to dispute a transaction appearing on their statement.  If during
this period a merchant suffers financial failure, then the acquirer is effectively liable for
any warranty in the case of purchase of goods; and for refund of pre-paid services such
as airline travel or insurance cover.  Additionally, failure to have an acquirer enforce best
practice card acceptance procedures at point of sale can result in excessive fraud.
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Issuers of credit cards therefore need some protection from losses that could be
expected to follow from a self-acquirer failing or not enforcing best practice acceptance
procedures.  Bankcard’s concept of requiring scheme participants to procure a surviving
guarantee from a qualifying guarantor is an example of how this protection could be
assured to issuers.

“Double Dipping” on Credit Losses

Since formulating our November 2000 response to the Joint Study, we have participated
in the ACCC sanctioned Joint Bank Review, which has led to the proposed avoidable
cost methodology for the Australian market.  This excludes the recognition of the costs
and benefits associated with the provision of extended credit.

The relatively high credit card interest margins on extended credit currently evident in the
Australian market supports the view that credit losses are recovered from the interest
margins charged to cardholders.  If interest margins were to fall to the point where that
recovery was inadequate, then a different interchange methodology, such as the
MasterCard method would be appropriate, as this recovers from acquirers losses
attributable to extended credit.

In any event, some credit losses occur in the period before cardholders start paying
interest on extended credit (e.g due to bankruptcy or death).  As these are not recovered
from interest margin it is appropriate that they be recovered from interchange.  An
indication of this cost could be found from the experience of charge cards (such as
Amex, Diners, store cards) where extended credit is not provided.

We welcome continued discussion with you ahead of the release of the consultative
document.

Yours sincerely,

Chris Smith
General Manager, Consumer Risk Management

Attach
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